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CALL TO ORDER:   
 
Chair Lamar Fisher called the meeting to order. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  If you’ll take your 
seats please. 
 
I will now call to order the regular Planning Council meeting this Thursday, 
December the 1st, 2011, as close to 10:00 a.m. as possible. Just a few 
announcements.  First of all, congratulations to Commissioner Mack, who’s 
not with us today, on her re-election. And we have Commissioner Long on his 
re-election, and Vice Mayor DuBose. Congratulations on your re-elections. 
Very well deserved. And then today is a special day.  It’s December the 1st.  
It’s the birthday of our newest member, Frederick Burton.  Happy birthday. 
And I think we even have some cake in the back to celebrate this wonderful 
event. 
So, congratulations. 
 
THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CHAIR LAMAR FISHER:  Please stand for the Pledge. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Following Roll Call by the Transcriptionist, the Chair declared a quorum 
present. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

CHAIR FISHER:  That puts us on our Consent Agenda, Items C-1 through 4. 
Is there a motion to approve? 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  So moved. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRUCK:  Second. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  All in favor, say aye. Opposed? 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  Motion -- motion made by Commissioner 
Castro and seconded by Commissioner Gunzburger. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  No.  It was – 
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COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  Oh, sorry.  Claudette Bruck. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Commissioner Bruck, seconded by Commissioner 
Gunzburger. 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Why don’t you let – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  No, no. 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  She asked me to help. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Commissioner Castro did it, and 
Commissioner Bruck seconded it. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay. All in favor, say aye again. Opposed. Motion does 
carry. 
 
VOTE PASSES UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

AGENDA ITEM R-1- COUNSEL’S REPORT 
 
CHAIR FISHER: Regular Agenda, R-1.  Andy, your report? 
 
MR. MAURODIS:  (Inaudible.) 
 
CHAIR FISHER: No report? 
 
AGENDA ITEM R-2- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Henry, R-2? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Mr. Chair, only -- only one thing.  Just next month’s meeting, 
January meeting, will be the annual election of officers.  I just want to let the 
Board know that all the current officers, Mayor Fisher, Commissioner 
Mallozzi, Commissioner Castro, are eligible to be re-elected for another year 
term. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  Very good.  That concludes your report? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Yes. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Very good. 
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PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AGENDA ITEMS PH-1, PH-2 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  PH-1 through 4, we have PH-1 is quasi-judicial, Andy. 
 
MR. MAURODIS:  And, Mr. Chair, the quasi-judicial hearing for PH-1 has 
been waived by the applicant. 
 
If there are no members of the public to speak, and I -- on any of the items 1 
through 3, or any combination thereof, you can -- and no Commissioner 
wishes to pull or oppose the staff recommendation, you can pass items PH-1, 
2, and 3, or any combination thereof through a single motion, if there are -- if 
there are no speakers and no one wishing to pull. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  Commissioner Long? 
 
MR. MAURODIS:  And -- and we do have a speaker on 4. 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  This one’s for questions. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  We’re going to pull PH-4 because we have speakers, so 
we’re dealing with 1, 2, and 3. 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That’s in a single motion. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Commissioner London, yes? 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  Yeah.  I have a question. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  Mr. Maurodis, when you say they -- the 
applicant has waived quasi-judicial, does that still apply to anybody else for 
quasi-judicial, or how can they potentially waive quasi-judicial? 
 
MR. MAURODIS:  The -- the applicant waive -- waives the quasi-judicial 
hearing.  The alternative would be if there was an interested party who 
opposed the waiver, they could oppose the waiver under -- under the -- under 
the rules, but we are advised that there is no one who wishes to speak on the 
matter, only someone dealing with the applicant, who is here to answer any 
questions. So we have -- there -- there’s no one here to -- to address any of 
those items. 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  All right.  Thank you for the answer. Thank you, 
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Chair. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Yeah.  Commissioner Gunzburger had made – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I move Items 1, 2, and 3. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Second. 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  (Inaudible).  I want to pull three. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  You do want to pull 3? 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  Yeah. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Then I – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Then you do 1 and 2, Commissioner? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Yes, I -- I amend my motion. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Second. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Amended and second on Items 1 and 2. All those in favor, 
say aye. Opposed? Motion does carry. 
 
VOTE PASSES UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
AGENDA ITEM PH-3 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  PH-3, Henry. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I have Gretchen Flores from – Council staff who will give you 
a brief overview, if you’d like. 
 
MR. FINK:  In looking at the recommendations and actions page on 3, it says 
that prior to the second reading, staff would like to see some things happen. 
Has there been any discussion about those things? 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  I can’t hear you. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  You’re going to need to speak in the phone, Mr. -- I mean 
into the microphone – 
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MR. FINK:  I’m sorry. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  -- please. 
 
MR. FINK:  (Inaudible) common to use – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you. 
 
MR. FINK:  -- the microphone. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Just repeat your question again. 
 
MR. FINK:  Sure.  On staff recommendations on page 1-1, it says that there 
are some recommendations that staff is making that they would like to see 
take place prior to the second reading. 
 
MR. REINSTEIN:  I think Mr. Sniezek has prepared a report. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Those two items -- those two items are being prepared.  
Mr. Sniezek, go ahead. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Well, we’ve been in close coordination with the City staff on 
those two items, and actually their -- the County Historic Commission staff’s 
been working with the City on the historic resources recommendations. 
 
And we’re just at a point where it’s not quite finished.  It just needs some 
additional information before the second hearing to just close the loop. And 
that’s why the recommendation’s in there. 
 
MR. FINK:  Well, that’s okay.  My question is where are we in those 
negotiations, which you partially answered, and is everything that staff’s 
asking for look like it’s going to come into play prior to the second reading? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Yes, I have confidence that everything that we’ve asked for 
will be provided before the second hearing.  And – 
 
MR. FINK:  And I guess, again, out of ignorance, did this come through in the 
first reading without those things because of a timeline with the State? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I would just say just due to the complexity of it.  The -- the 
Pompano TOC area has a lot of historic resources, and, as part of this 
process, we had the County Historic Commission staff look at it and identified 
a lot of historic resources, or potential historic resources, which the City’s 
aware of, also. So I will just say it’s the complexity of it. 
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So we’re really just down to identifying actually what the mechanism is that 
the City’s going to use to identify and protect historic resources. I have full 
confidence that will be done before the second hearing. 
 
The other issue is just about the zoning code that the City is doing.  They 
have just -- they have started that process.  It’s not unusual for that process 
to be started concurrent with a land use plan amendment, so it’s not unusual. 
And just before the second hearing, this will probably come back, probably 
like March or so.  I think that the City will be far enough along to give us 
details about what they’re going to do, and we’ll share that with the Council. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Fink, I can assure you, as a Pompano representative, 
that those two issues are being aggressively addressed.  We should have it 
done by March. 
 
MR. FINK:  My question as a follow-up would be was there a reason, since 
there are -- according to Henry’s words, there are so many historical issues 
within that area that they weren’t addressed prior to the first reading? 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Sniezek. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I think a lot of it’s just the concern or the interest of the 
County Historic Commission staff.  I think the City’s comfortable with their 
process. 
 
So this is just the County being interested in -- in understanding what the 
City’s going to do, and just having its say. So I think the City does a good job 
protecting historic resources.  This area, since it has so much historic 
resources, I think it’s to the City’s benefit to try to protect them, because I 
think that’s going to be one of the flavors of the area. 
 
So I think everybody’s on the same page that these things are going to be 
dealt with in the right way. 
 
MR. FINK:  Okay.  Thank you, Henry. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Commissioner Gunzburger, did you have a comment? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I have a couple questions.  I’m glad 
someone pulled it, because I’d forgotten when I wrote it a couple of days 
ago. 
 
One, why are they exempted from providing affordable housing in the 
transportation-oriented corridor? 
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MR. SNIEZEK:  They’re exempted from the County policy because they’re 
actually proposing less dwelling units with the amendment than they’re 
allowed right now under the existing land use classification, and the policy in 
the County plan only requires the affordable housing policy to go into effect if 
the County’s going to -- the City’s going to propose 100 or more new units.  
They’re actually proposing less. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  But if they build -- if there is a builder 
who takes -- who builds a hundred units or more, must they not abide by the 
15 percent rule? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  No.  The County does not have that kind of a policy.  They – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Well, that will give me something else to 
do. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I’m sure the City staff is here if you’d like to have some 
additional information from the City staff about their affordable housing 
policies.  They’d probably be able to address that. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Like to hear from staff, Commissioner Gunzburger? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I would in a minute.  I’ll give you a 
couple other -- one other question. Is this in a CRA? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  So then when they talk about the 
benefits to the City, of this redevelopment, it isn’t going to help the City’s 
bottom line.  It will just help whatever it improves within the City. 
 
But I hope the residents know that CRAs end up costing them a lot more 
than they understand.  They have to provide the police and fire protection 
based on the current values rather than the enhanced values. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Any further questions? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  No. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I just want to hear about affordable. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Ms. Dolan.  State your name and address for the record. 
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MS. DOLAN:  Jean Dolan, City of Pompano Beach.  I’m the Principal 
Planner. Our affordable housing policies will kick in at -- whenever we have 
development of substantial size. 
 
And, also, we recognize the importance of affordable housing in any kind of 
transit-oriented development, and we’ll always be working with affordable 
housing providers whenever we do a large TOD within our TOC. 
 
For example, right now, we’re working with DOT on identifying a site for the 
new FEC commuter rail along Dixie Highway, and we would like to do a TOD 
around that particular piece of property. 
 
And we would work with the affordable housing developers, right up front.  
We do have an Office of Housing and Urban Improvement that works with all 
of our federal housing programs and with all our affordable housing 
developers. 
 
And we -- we recognize as a city that in order for this to be successful, we 
have to have all levels of income in this area, particularly affordable housing, 
because that really becomes the -- the root of the success in that kind of 
area. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Thank you. Well, what we really need is 
more affordable rental units.  That’s the – 
 
MS. DOLAN:  Yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  -- greatest need within Broward County. 
The FEC corridor, if you think you’re going to be waiting for light rail, it may 
be in someone else’s lifetime.  That is not coming.  I’ve spoken with FDOT, 
and there is no money, at least in the next 15 years if not more, because they 
need to put in three more tracks.  It has to be a four track rail line in order to 
provide light rail commuter service because of the freight on that line. 
 
MS. DOLAN:  Well, interestingly, we have a meeting with DOT this afternoon, 
and there is a federal program now where you have to have a 50/50 match in 
whatever your project is, and we’re working with the DOT to try to figure out 
how Pompano can inject themselves into that process. And us buying the 
land on this parcel may be our 50 percent of the improvement. And true that 
it may be some time before the rail gets to us, but this is why we plan, so that 
we can capitalize – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I’m glad you’re planning. 
 
MS. DOLAN:  -- on that. 
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COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  But I just don’t want you to hold your 
breath. 
 
MS. DOLAN:  Right.  Well, actually, I’ve heard that it’s been accelerated quite 
a bit.  We used to be on a ten year track; now I hear it’s on a four year track.  
And they’re doing the first – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  You’re hearing – 
 
MS. DOLAN:  -- link between – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  -- different answers than I do. 
 
MS. DOLAN: -- Fort Lauderdale and Miami as their first trial. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you, Ms. Dolan. Any other Council members have a 
question?  Mr. Burton. 
 
MR. BURTON:  I have a couple comments here. I’m definitely in favor of 
redevelopment wherever anyone wants to redevelop. However, I have an 
issue in the sense that I provide affordable housing as a business, and it 
becomes more and more difficult every year as things like this are passed. 
 
I find that as these, what I’ll call carve-outs of areas, are done, I don’t ever 
see them done in areas that are higher socio-economic areas, but, instead, 
always lower socio-economic areas. 
 
And what I’m concerned about is that a lot of times there’s either little notice 
to residents in -- in situations, or the residents don’t understand what the 
notices are. 
 
And any time you redevelop and you’re giving a what I’ll call inorganic 
method of redevelopment, as opposed to a developer just coming in and 
them deciding that they want to redevelop, as opposed to cities, it ends up 
displacing a lot of people that have lived there for a very long time, people 
that have families, homes that have been passed down from generation to 
generation. 
 
And a lot of times what happens is people don’t realize what’s happening in 
their areas until someone is, you know, bulldozing the house next door in 
order to make a four-unit -- or four story apartment building, sometimes.  And 
then it’s too late. 
 
I, too, have a concern with the affordable housing piece, that it’s not subject 
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to that. And in my opinion, doing away with some of the most affordable 
housing in order to redevelop, and not allocate for affordable housing, along 
with a lot of other reasons in here, that’s why I would be voting no against 
this. Thank you. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Ms. Dolan, did you wish to respond? 
 
MS. DOLAN:  Well, I can -- let me first take the one point about the public not 
being aware.  I can assure you the public is fully aware. We have a CRA 
that’s in -- covers 80 percent of this area.  They have a -- two advisory 
boards that they run everything through, as well as our City Commission, 
which sits as the CRA. 
 
We also do all these mailing for all these people.  We do get calls.  We have 
people come in and talk to us.  So the people in that area are fully aware of 
what’s going on. In terms of the -- of the inorganic development potential, I 
do have a slide that shows how much vacant property is in this area, so it’s 
not like we’re going in and bulldozing people’s homes. 
 
Most of the vacant land that is in this area is owned by our CRA, so it will be 
developed, not -- this isn’t just a -- a plan and then we sit back and wait.  This 
is something that the CRA’s doing proactive development on, getting tenants, 
moving forward in a very positive way. 
 
So I don’t think you’re going to find this kind of displacement and shocking 
realizations that something is being built. We do have a workshop coming up 
that our Urban Designer, Natalie -- Natasha.  I’m sorry, Natasha.  Natasha 
Alfonso can give you the details on it.  It’s going between December 5th and 
December 13th, where we are doing a -- a master plan where we’ll have it 
open to the public for those entire nine days.  We’re advertising that.  We’re -
- we’re making calls, we’re sending out letters.  So we think we’ll have a good 
participation level on that, and that’s to go over the actual zoning and master 
planning as a -- in the hands-on kind of process. 
 
So I -- I think that the City has gone to the absolute maximum degree 
possible for both public involvement and public information outreach and 
planning in this area, and I think it’s going to be a great benefit to the City as 
well as to the Broward County when this is completed. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Any further comments, Mr. Burton? 
 
MR. BURTON:  No. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Fink, you had your hand up? 
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MR. FINK:  Uh-huh.  Follow-up. I keep hearing this affordable housing.  
When is the last time you revisited or visited the definition of affordable 
housing, and how -- what is the criteria, or what are the numbers that you 
use for affordable housing? 
 
MS. DOLAN:  I think it would behoove us all if perhaps we came back -- 
since we have these other conditions on second reading.  Perhaps we can 
come back with a specific affordable housing approach and policy that would 
bring everyone at ease, because, obviously, we haven’t prepared something 
to talk in detail on that today. 
 
But it -- since that seems to be an issue, I think it would be perfectly 
acceptable to the City to add that as a third condition, that prior to second 
reading before this Board, we present what our affordable housing strategy is 
in our TOC, and then everybody can be more comfortable with that concept. 
 
MR. FINK:  Does -- does the County have a definition of affordable housing? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Yes. 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes. 
 
CHAIR FISHER: Yes. 
 
MS. DOLAN:  Very detailed. 
 
MR. FINK: Is there a dollar value that’s placed on it? 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO: It’s our index – 
 
CHAIR FISHER: Commissioner Gunzburger. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  -- it’s our percentage. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Commissioner Gunzburger. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  It is indexed – 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  We’ll turn them all on for you.  There you go. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  -- it -- it is indexed to the current 
economy, and so, with falling prices but falling wages, it has to be adjusted 
on an annual basis.  Although the price of housing has fallen, so has the 
price -- the average wage in Broward County. 
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MR. FINK:  And – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  And the poverty level, unfortunately – 
 
MR. FINK: -- so this – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  -- has risen. 
 
MR. FINK: -- so is there some place where we can look and see within the 
past three years how much that index has dropped? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Mr. Sniezek can get the information – 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I can -- I can get – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER: -- from our department – 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- you that information. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  -- or do you have it, as well? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  The last I saw, which was just a few years ago, I think the -- 
the median family income for a family of four was like about in the $60,000’s. 
So then there’s three levels of affordable -- actually, four.  There’s workforce 
housing, which can go up to 140 percent of median income.  Then there’s 
moderate, which is 120 percent.  Then there’s this low income housing, 
which is 80 percent of median. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  And then there’s very low. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  And then very low, which is 60 percent.  So there’s different 
levels.  And it’s probably not -- it’s probably actually a little lower now, but it’s 
probably not much different than this.  The $60,000 was the -- was the 
starting point. 
 
MR. FINK:  Did -- did I understand you to say that it was three years ago that 
we looked at this? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK: The -- the County plan was amended about – 
 
MR. FINK:  Three years ago. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- three years ago to – 
 
MR. FINK:  Okay. 
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MR. SNIEZEK:  -- update the affordable housing criteria. 
 
MR. FINK:  It hasn’t been done any more recently than that to account for the 
continued decrease of the value of the property – 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Just the – 
 
MR. FINK:  -- and the continued decrease – 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- the percentages were updated. 
 
MR. FINK:  Okay. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  The numbers are changed all the time, depending on the 
yearly figures. 
 
MR. FINK:  Okay.  And, Commissioner Gunzburger – 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  Yes, Mr. Fink. 
 
MR. FINK:  -- when you said affordable rental housing, could you explain 
what you meant? 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  There are, as you well know, with this 
economy, more people cannot afford to purchase rather than to rent.  And 
rent is the way they need to go. 
 
And depending on the size of the home or apartment, the figures would 
change.  And I don’t know those numbers in the-top-of-my-head. But that is 
what we hear constantly is the greatest need in Broward County is affordable 
rental, so that we don’t have more homeless people on the streets. 
 
MR. FINK:  Okay.  Thank you, Mayor. My -- my comment would be, because 
I’m sensitive to this because I spent 20 years in the mortgage business, so I 
have a fairly good understanding of what’s affordable and what’s not, rental 
wise.  I also happen to own rental properties. The biggest problem that I see 
is that people, not that they can’t afford it, but they haven’t accumulated 
enough money to even move in. 
 
COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  With the three months that they need to 
cover. 
 
MR. FINK:  At least two.  At least first and security. And, to a landlord, and I 
am one, okay, so – 
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COMMISSIONER GUNZBURGER:  I understand. 
 
MR. FINK:  -- I’m -- I’m disclosing here that when somebody comes to me 
and says they would like to rent a property, and they can barely get the first 
month’s rent together, they’re not going to be able to rent, regardless of what 
the affordability is. 
 
And one of the things I look at is what are they earning.  And I do have the 
ability, because I was in the mortgage business for over 20 years, to work out 
the ratios and see what it is that they’re making. 
 
And they make more than enough, but they haven’t been able to accumulate 
enough move-in money. And that’s one of the bigger problems, because 
there’s enough property out there to rent, but they haven’t accumulated the 
move-in money to give the landlord peace of mind that they are protected 
when they do move in. And that, I think, is more of the issue. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Fink, any further questions or comments? 
 
MR. FINK:  No.  My soapbox is done on this. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  That’s okay. Commissioner Mallozzi. 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  I just have a comment to Mr. Fink.  Also a 
landlord, and I know that as a landlord, if I see a tenant that’s -- that’s 
working, that’s really trying hard, I adjust. 
 
And I don’t always -- actually, a majority of the time, I don’t get first, last, and 
security, because I see a tenant that’s good, that’s hard working, and I will 
take my chance. 
 
And every single time I have, except for one in 15 years of owning rental 
properties, I have not gotten burned. So that’s something that maybe there’s 
something that the Commission can do to maybe give an incentive to 
landlords or, I don’t know, anyone -- you know, I’m just -- I didn’t mean to -- 
but to say, you know what, take a chance, because if -- you don’t always 
need first, last, and security – 
 
MR. FINK:  And -- and I’ve – 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  -- to get in – 
 
MR. FINK:  -- adjusted. 
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COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  -- and that would then solve the problem. 
 
MR. FINK:  But I didn’t say, if you look back, I said first and security. 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  But – 
 
MR. FINK:  Because I’ve taken out the last.  But we’re (inaudible) from the 
issue. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  All right.  Any further comments from the Council?  Mr. 
Sniezek. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Can I just add something for the record?  Just about public 
notice. I just want the Board to know that we sent out approximately a 
thousand courtesy notices to all the property owners within the amendment 
site and 300 feet around.  We received four phone calls.  So I just wanted – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  Very good. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- the Board to know that. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Any last minute comments? Is there a motion? 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Move PH-3 with staff recommendations. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRUCK:  Second. 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Second. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  It’s been moved by Commissioner Castro – 
 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Can we also add for amendment – 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Oh, and include the recommendation by the 
planner from Pompano to include a formal housing strategy for this TOC. 
Thank you. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  All right.  She -- she’s got it.  Okay? All in favor, say aye. 
Opposed? 
 
MR. BURTON:  Opposed. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  We have one opposition.  Mr. Burton is opposed.  Okay? 
Very good. 
 
VOTE PASSES 14 TO 1 WITH MR. BURTON VOTING NO. 
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AGENDA ITEM PH-4 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  PH-4, Henry. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Yes, if it’s – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Staff? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- if it’s okay with the Board, I’d like to have Gretchen Flores 
from our staff give just a brief overview of the staff’s recommendation. And 
we have Mr. Lee Feldman, City Manager of Fort Lauderdale, signed in to 
speak. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay. 
 
MS. FLORES:  Good morning.  Gretchen Flores, Planning Council staff. 
This is the second Public Hearing for this item. The proposal is to change the 
designation on 67.8 acres of recreation and open space, and 4.8 acres of 
employment center high to 72.6 acres of transportation. 
 
At the first Planning Council hearing, the Board recommended the City 
mitigate the full transportation impacts instead of the impacts to just below 3 
percent significance threshold, as offered by the city. 
 
The County Commission on June 28th, 2011 transmitted the amendment to 
the State per Planning Council’s transmittal recommendation, with the 
condition that the City provides mitigation to address the transportation 
impacts prior to County Commission’s second hearing. 
 
The State review agencies did not offer additional comments. The City 
Commission, at a November 15th, 2011 meeting, reaffirmed its voluntary 
commitment to mitigate impacts to just below 3 percent significance 
threshold, consistent with the City’s previous voluntary proposal. 
 
Recognizing the City has not offered the full mitigation costs as requested by 
Planning Council, Planning Council staff is recommending denial. I’ll be 
happy to answer any questions.  I believe City staff is also here to answer 
questions. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Very good.  Let’s go ahead with the speakers first. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  The only speaker signed up is Mr. Lee Feldman. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Feldman. 
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MR. FELDMAN:  Mr. Mayor, good morning.  My name’s Lee Feldman.  I’m 
the City Manager for the City of Fort Lauderdale. If you’d just indulge me for 
a second to go back historically and say why is this request before the 
Planning Council, to begin with?  There was a -- we call an error in land use 
designation for the airport with that parcel that’s illuminated there to be 
considered open space and parks -- park and recreation use, based upon the 
fact that there were two municipal stadiums that were on the property, 
Lockhart and Fort Lauderdale Stadium. 
 
We had a request from the FAA to re-designate that land as transportation 
related use in order to be consistent with a deed, which we have no objection 
to doing. At this time, it’s important to recognize that there is no firm, 
definitive future use for the land, other than to designate it for transportation 
use. 
 
We have two municipal stadiums, Fort Lauderdale, which is currently not 
being utilized, and Lockhart, which is being utilized by the Broward County 
School Board and the Strikers as a -- as a facility. 
 
At some point in the future, we do anticipate another use to come to that 
property.  Right now, it’s not being used for its highest and best use. But 
Broward County already has a system for addressing the transportation 
needs, and that’s transportation concurrency fees, which would address the 
traffic mitigation needs at that time, when the use is designated and 
formulated. 
 
Right now, we can think hypothetically what the use may be, and try to figure 
out what the traffic impacts would be hypothetically, but there’s no specific 
manner or mechanism to determine what that will actually be today. 
 
I’d also like to point out that we’re using a term rather loosely, and that term 
is voluntary.  All the staff reports, all the context of this contribution for traffic 
mitigation has been couched as voluntary. 
 
And voluntary means just that.  It is a voluntary contribution by the City, not a 
mandatory contribution that is imposed. If the Planning Council and the 
County Commission wish to mandate and impose certain traffic mitigation 
requirements, they have a mechanism to do that, and that is to adjust their 
transportation concurrency fees if those fees are, indeed, inadequate. 
 
If they’re not inadequate, then there’s really not a need to even exact any 
more money from a transportation mitigation. Second issue is, and this one is 
particularly troublesome to -- to me, is that if the City does make a voluntary 
contribution, separate and apart from being imposed as a condition, that 
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cannot be used as precedent setting for us or any other city in this County.  
Again, it’s voluntary.  It’s made based upon a need that’s worked out between 
two parties and not mandated. The third is the actual capital improvement.  If 
you go back and look at the -- the traffic study, or the traffic analysis, it talks 
about widening commercial between Northwest 21st and I-95. 
 
As far as I can tell and the staff from the County is here, they can perhaps 
give me a different answer, but as far as I can tell, that project is neither 
included nor funded in the County’s CIP. 
 
So the question is what exactly are we mitigating?  What exactly are we 
contributing towards?  A theoretical project that may never occur? The other 
part of the -- the condition that is troubling is that it’s tied to the issuance of a 
building permit on the property.  And, again, we don’t have any potential 
project.  Maybe if it’s tied to a potential project, that would be more -- you 
know, more applicable. 
 
But if we change the door on the locker-room of Lockhart Stadium, which 
requires a building permit, we would be required, under this voluntary 
contribution, of making a -- a traffic mitigation payment at -- at this point. I’m 
not sure that’s really what is intended, but that’s the way that the proposal is 
on the table today. 
 
The bottom line is that voluntary is voluntary.  We would be happy to work out 
a voluntary contribution with the County Commission, but it can’t have strings 
attached to it in terms of being precedent setting.  It cannot be tied to a 
building permit, but, rather, it should be tied to the actual capital improvement 
project when and if it ever occurs. Those are my comments.  I’d be glad to 
answer anything specific you have on our application. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Mr. Sniezek. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Just like to respond to some of the comments. First, the 
issue -- the concurrency provisions really can’t solve the problem, because 
the concurrency provisions are -- basically address short-term planning 
issues. 
 
And -- and that would still be required if this is approved. But our analysis is a 
long term analysis, and we compare it to the long term plan.  So what we’re 
trying to identify here are problems that are going to be identified in the long 
term.  So I don’t -- concurrency, in and of itself, does not solve the problem 
as far as we see it. 
 
Secondly, about voluntary commitment, the reason we call it voluntary 
commitment is because the way it’s -- our analysis is structured, we just 
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identify the -- the problems.  And if there’s a problem, our default position is 
to say, well, you have a problem, and if you don’t come up with a way to fix it, 
we’re going to recommend denial. We don’t go and say, you have a problem.  
We’re going to negotiate with you now and try to solve your problem.  We 
just -- it’s really up to the applicant to solve the problem. 
 
And the proposal that the City put forward was not put forward by Council 
staff or, as far as I know, County staff.  It was put forward by the city staff and 
the city.  So maybe there’s a reluctance to do what the city originally 
proposed, but it did not come from us.  It came from the city. 
 
And as far as how it would be addressed in the future if there was a -- a 
commitment put in writing, it would be worked out between the city, County 
Attorney’s Office, the County Development Management Division, and I 
believe it would be kind of a building permit for a principal building. It wouldn’t 
be just for a locker-room enhancement or something like that. It would be 
worked out legally between the city and the County. Those are my 
comments. Thank you. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  If I could respond – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  You want to respond? 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  -- Mr. Chair?  Thank you. First, I agree, concurrency is in 
the short term and not the long term, but that doesn’t alleviate the need for 
the County Commission to actually adopt rules and regulations and a 
statutory basis to create, in essence, an impact fee for -- for long term 
mitigation needs. 
 
They certainly have that authority under the statutes.  If that is a need and a 
concern of the County, then they ought to exercise their authority under the 
statutes to do that, so that there’s a specific formula, just like any other 
transportation impact fee levied in this State. 
 
Second, with regard to it being a -- a voluntary contribution, again, it is a 
voluntary contribution.  The -- the City did make a submission based upon 
the 3 percent threshold.  We are prepared to honor a voluntary commitment, 
again, under certain conditions. 
 
One, that it is not precedent setting against us or any other city in this 
County. And, two, that it’s actually tied to a capital improvement that’ll be 
made, not a theoretical improvement that will be, you know, potentially dealt 
with sometime in the future. 
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CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you. Okay.  We’re going to open it up for Council 
discussion.  Commissioner Castro, we’ll begin with you. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Yeah. I have a couple quick questions. As I 
recall, this originally came through the FAA? 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  The FAA -- the FAA is the party that has requested the City 
change the land use. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Right.  And if you don’t, what does the FAA do? 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  That’s a good question. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Okay.  I just -- I’m figuring we don’t know the 
answer.  That was a facetious, but it was real. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  We don’t. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Henry, on the land use change, and, again, it’s 
been a while since we had this argument, our friend who is not here who 
used to be so good at this, and I agree with him a hundred percent, the way 
we look at traffic impacts is we look at the use of the land. 
 
We don’t care, at this point in the process, what building or what, you know, 
final is going to be sitting on there.  We look at the actual use of the land. And 
even if the land is blank, we attribute trips to it. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  That’s correct.  We assume a potential reasonable use. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  So right now it’s classified as open and park 
space.  When it goes to transportation, my assumption is the number of trips 
go up.  Even though it’s going to be used the same way, at this stage in the 
process, we attribute the new number of trips to it, and that’s what we’re 
asking for mitigation for. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Right.  We assume that it would be built out for 
transportation support uses for the airport. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Because it’s going to be transportation use. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Correct. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  And so then you assume those number of trips, 
even though today we don’t know that’s what’s going to happen.  It could stay 
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Lockhart Stadium.  It’s been there longer than I was born, and I was born a 
long time ago.  I -- I get that. But tomorrow they could say, thank you, we’re 
clearing out the stadium and putting in, I don’t know, a Delta terminal, 
whatever we’re going to do.  And I’m being facetious. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  And we do it on both ends.  We -- right now, there’s just the 
two stadiums.  We didn’t just give them credit for that.  We gave them credit 
for other things that they can build under the recreation/open space category. 
We actually gave them credit for a little bit more of an intense recreation use.  
So we try to do it on both ends in the analysis. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Right.  And this is the only time to catch that 
land use change of impact. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Correct. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Now, when they come through with a building 
site plan, and that won’t even probably come back to the County unless it 
goes through DPEP or some other things, because of the -- the plan that’s 
being utilized, but it would come to the City, and then the City would have 
their opportunity to say, okay, you have to have so many parking spaces or 
whatever.  But they really don’t get into traffic impacts.  They may tell them 
they have to put up a driveway in a certain way or something like that; is that 
correct? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  I don’t -- most cities I don’t think have an independent traffic 
impact fee. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  No.  Exactly.  So -- so it’s either done here or 
it’s not done at all. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Well, done through the County. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Yes.  And -- and I remember the last time we 
heard this, the neighborhood across the street was very worried about the 
amount of traffic that will come through. So if we don’t kind of put in the 
mitigation impact here, then there’s no way to fix problems that may crop up 
later, when it becomes whatever it’s going to become. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  That -- I guess that’s how we look at it, yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER CASTRO:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  Mr. Feldman, did you wish to respond? 
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MR. FELDMAN:  I do, just to clarify two issues. First is you cannot look at the 
entire 67 acre parcel as being fully developed for transportation related uses, 
because there are issues that surround an airport. For example, you cannot 
infringe upon the approaches.  So that takes out a considerable portion of the 
-- the southern piece of that. 
 
I do not believe that the County considered that in their analysis.  Maybe 
County staff can indicate otherwise. The second is you have height 
limitations in terms of what you can put there.  You have lighting limitations 
and the such. 
 
So until County Planning Council staff tells us that they’ve considered all that, 
in terms of the determination of the trips, I think, you know, the very basis for 
determining how many trips, to begin with, can go on that property may be 
somewhat in question. 
 
Second is I’d like to point out that even though the City does not have a 
transportation impact fee, the County does have a Countywide transportation 
concurrency fee, which, in essence, is that impact fee, which is levied, again, 
to mitigate, as the staff has said, traffic impacts based upon the -- the 
projects. To have a transportation impact fee for the City would be only 
applicable to the City roads, not to the County or -- or State infrastructure 
that’s around there. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  (Inaudible.) Are you done? 
 
MAYOR UDINE:  As I listen to this, it sounds to me like staff and this 
applicant needs to do more work to see if they can get on the same page 
with some of this. As one vote up here, I’m not prepared to vote different than 
what staff is recommending right now, so I’d like to -- you know, I was going 
to go through a whole long spiel, but leave it at I’d like to make a motion to 
table this while the applicant works with staff to see if there’s a way they can 
come up with some kind of agreement. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRUCK:  Second. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Hold on.  Hold on.  Henry? 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Just if the motion is to table, I just want to say that -- that 
Planning Council, first of all, like I say, can chime in and this is a 
recommendation to the County Commission, and the City’s on a tight time 
frame.  They have got to get this through the County Commission by the end 
of January, or else they’re going to have to start all over again. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  So, Mayor, maybe you want to change your motion to -- to 
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recommend staff’s recommendation of denial. 
 
MAYOR UDINE:  All right.  I’ll move to follow staff’s recommendation, and 
they can take it to the County Commission, I guess, with a denial from the 
Planning Council, then. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  It’s been moved by Mayor; it’s been second by 
Commissioner Castro. Discussion on that?  Ms. Graham. 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  I wanted to wait until everyone else – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Can you get your microphone on? 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  -- I wanted to make sure that everyone else had an 
opportunity to speak before I did.  And I just have a couple of questions I 
want on the record. 
 
First of all, sitting up here, I would never vote against staff recommendations. 
Henry, or to the woman that presented, Gretchen, can you confirm that when 
we saw this in May at the first hearing, the existing traffic was rated as an F?  
Do I recall that correctly? 
 
MR.SNIEZEK:  Yes.  (Inaudible), yeah. 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  Okay. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Our -- the projected traffic in that area has got a lot of F rated 
roads, yes. 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  Thank you. And once we get this land use amendment, 
unless this site is developed to a Site Plan Level 4, per se, it won’t even go 
through the Planning and Zoning Department of the City of Fort Lauderdale.  
It will not come back to the County or certainly to Broward Planning Council. 
And as far as the City Manager’s comments about changing a door at 
Lockhart, is it my understanding, did I read incorrectly that some of the ADA 
restroom upgrades and some other alterations at one or both of the stadiums 
are in progress or already completed? 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  I – 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  Since you made -- since you made the analogy to changing 
a door at Lockhart. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  -- I believe they’ve been completed at – 
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MS. GRAHAM:  Okay. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  -- at Lockhart.  I don’t believe there’s been ADA changes at 
Fort Lauderdale Stadium, because there’s no intended future use of the 
facility. 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  Okay.  But, again, any of those alterations that are made 
through the City of Fort Lauderdale Billing Department certainly would not 
come before the County or the Broward County Planning Council. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  No.  My -- my point was that the County’s -- staff’s 
recommendation was that the transportation voluntary contribution be made 
at the time of a building permit.  It did not indicate building permit for what or 
what -- what extent. 
 
So, again, if they decided to construct a -- you know, take the staff’s 
comment of a principal structure, if they added a storage room at Lockhart 
Stadium next year to accommodate new equipment for the high school 
football program, would that be a building permit of a principal structure that 
would trigger the City making a voluntary mitigation payment at that time 
without necessarily changing the use of the property? That was the -- the 
question with regard to what triggers – 
 
MS. GRAHAM:  And then that reinforces my point that this is the one 
opportunity for any mitigation to be decided and paid on accordingly. Thank 
you very much. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you for the comments, Ms. Graham. That’s it? 
Commissioner London. 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  Thank you, Chair. Mr. Sniezek, Mr. Feldman 
gave an example.  Was that ever your intention, that if they pulled a permit 
for a -- a door to be replaced or upgraded, something like that, was ever that 
-- was that ever – 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  That never crossed my mind.  Like I said, the actual form of 
the agreement would be worked out between the City and the County, 
including all the City Attorney and the County Attorneys. And I -- I’m never -- 
I’m not aware of any -- these agreements have been done many times in the 
past, and I’ve never come across a problem such as that. So I – 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  Okay. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  -- would not anticipate that being an issue. 
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COMMISSIONER LONDON:  And -- and I -- I have to agree with everybody 
before me.  Commissioner Castro and Ms. Graham just pointed out that this 
is really the opportunity that we have to give our thought and our input onto 
this process.  And if it doesn’t get done here, it’s probably not going to -- it’s 
not going to come back to us. 
 
And I agree with Mayor Udine, also, that I would have a difficult time voting 
against the staff recommendation, because I think staff, as -- as we’ve all 
seen, staff has been very accommodating in trying to negotiate and 
accommodate and come up with a compromise when they’ve had these 
issues in front of them. 
 
The -- I just need to respond to what City Manager Feldman had to say about 
voluntary.  I know that in my City we call these voluntary contributions, also.  
We do development agreements and we negotiate.  But that is a negotiation. 
At the end of the day, I’ve heard developers say time and time again they’re 
mandatory voluntary contributions.  And that’s just the nature of the business. 
So, Mr. Feldman, when you negotiated development agreements, at the end 
of the day, when you have extractions from developers, do you say to them 
this is part of the deal to get the development agreement signed, sealed, and 
delivered, or you – do they just say, well, if it’s a voluntary, we’re not going to 
participate? 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  We -- we don’t couch them as voluntary.  We rely upon our 
Uniform Land Development Code to have the necessary items in it to handle 
the mitigation for projects. 
 
If a developer wants to go above and beyond that, we’re very careful to make 
sure that it’s not tied to the -- it’s not tied to the actual approval, but it’s part of 
their -- their package. 
 
Here, we, as part of our initial package, we proposed the mitigation based 
upon a formula that came out to, I think, $108,000. We’ve looked at that 
formula again, and still using that formula, based upon today’s numbers, that 
number is now down to $77,000. 
 
That is our voluntary number that we are -- we are putting forward, not the 
$424,000 that staff is recommending. I mean, we can certainly go through the 
basis of why we think that is $77,000 versus $424,000. 
 
And, as staff has indicated, we can work out the conditions of that voluntary 
payment with the County Commission at the time that this item is before 
them. 
 
So what triggers it; when is it triggered; what is it tied to, whether it’s 
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precedent setting or not.  And we would be happy to have that conversation 
with the County staff at -- at that time. But the real question here is whether 
our voluntary contribution of $77,000 is the number or whether it’s County 
staff’s $424,000. 
 
COMMISSIONER LONDON:  I hear you, but maybe at some point in time 
you want to change the process at the County level when -- not here. But I -- 
I, again, go with what Mayor Udine said.  I think this Planning Council staff is 
really wonderful at negotiating, finding something that’s compromised to the 
benefit of everybody. 
 
And I -- I could not support something that’s not recommended or 
recommended against by Council staff.  So I would vote no for this. Thank 
you, Chair. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Vice Mayor. 
 
VICE MAYOR DUBOSE:  I just want to weigh in on this and just kind of take 
us back to the first reading. I, too, support our staff, and I think that they do a 
great job.  In this situation, I’m looking at both staff, my City staff that does a 
good job, as well. 
 
What really brought us to this point is that, you know, this process was 
handled by the MPO and their staff, and they left, and so we had someone 
that come -- that came in to handle how they calculated this formula. 
 
I don’t think there’s really major pushback with it.  It’s voluntary or however 
you want to couch it in regards to addressing this F road, which, if nothing 
happens, it’s still an F road.  It’s not a city road.  It’s something that the 
County needs to address, whether or not it happens. 
 
Had we not made that change with regards to who handles this for this 
Council, this would not be an issue.  We would still be doing it the way we did 
it before. What happened, we had a -- a shift, and then we -- was brought 
about a new calculation and a formula. 
 
And one of the issues that I raised was, to me, more of a fairness issue here, 
because we are setting precedents on how we’re handling this in -- in 
regards to our City. 
 
And, at the end of the day, regardless of what goes there or doesn’t go there, 
but if something were to go there and we had to, you know, put a hangar or 
build something there in regards to that particular land use, that is something 
that would be more burdensome on our residents and with a different 
standard that was applied to other cities. 



Planning Council 
12/01/2011 
LG/NC 28 
 

 
As it was pointed out, this is not a may; this is a must.  This is in regards to 
the FAA, and this is something that came down that brought us to this point. 
So, generally, I’m very supportive of Council staff, but I can’t support that. 
 
And the way it came about initially was, okay, this is what we have.  Planning 
Council, this is what has just happened.  So we kind of gave the direction, 
and that’s how we’re somewhat getting this recommendation. 
 
And Harry, you -- I mean, Henry, you can correct me.  I don’t think on first 
reading it was so much the recommendation as presented.  It was, hey, this 
is what we have with this particular item.  Planning Council, what should we 
do? 
 
And Planning Council voted to say this is what we should do.  So on second 
reading, this recommendation is almost, in essence, our recommendation 
more so than staff.  And, Henry, you can kind of weigh in and help me refresh 
my memory on that. 
 
MR. SNIEZEK:  Yeah, that’s true.  I mean, our final recommendation is based 
upon the previous Council direction about what kind of mitigation you were 
requesting from the City. 
 
And since the City did not provide that additional mitigation, we 
recommended denial, based upon the previous Planning Council discussion. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Okay.  Further discussion? There’s a motion.  Please – 
 
MR. FINK:  Could we get a clarification that a vote for the motion is a vote – 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Recommendation, denial.  Correct?  It is recommending 
denial. All in favor say aye. Opposed? 
 
VICE MAYOR DUBOSE:  Nay. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Vice Mayor DuBose said he’s opposed. Motion carries. 
 
MR. FELDMAN:  Thank you for your consideration. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Thank you. 
 
VOTE PASSES 14 TO 1 WITH VICE MAYOR DUBOSE VOTING NO. 
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OTHER BUSINESS 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  That concludes our agenda. Our next meeting, of course, 
will be January the 26th in 2012. Any other discussion? 
 
COMMISSIONER MALLOZZI:  Happy holidays. 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  Happy holidays to everybody. 
 

ADJOURMENT 
 
CHAIR FISHER:  This meeting is adjourned. 
 
(The meeting concluded at 10:13 a.m.) 


